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ANSWER OF RESPONDENTS 
ANTON & CHIA, LLP, GREGORY A. 
WAHL, CPA, AND GEORGIA 
CHUNG, CPA TO ORDER 
INSTITUTING PUBLIC 
ADMINISTRATIVE AND CEASE
AND-DESIST PROCEEDINGS 

Pursuant to Rule 220, SEC Rules of Practice, 17 CFR 201.220, Respondents, Anton & 

Chia, LLP ("A&C"), Gregory A. Wahl, CPA ("Wahl") and Georgia Chung, CPA ("Chung'') 

( collectively, the "Respondents"), and each of them, for themselves and no other Respondent, 

through their undersigned counsel, hereby answer the allegations of the Division of Enforcement 

(the "Division") of the United States Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") of the 

Order Instituting Proceedings ("OIP"} in this matter as follows. With respect to Chung, 

Respondent Chung does not have personally knowledge of audit and review work referenced in 

the OIP other than the work to which she was assigned and accordingly as to the responses 

below, for those responses she is relying, upon information and belief, on the responses her co

Respondents. To the extent, if any, any allegation asserting liability or wrongdoing of any ki_nd 

is not otherwise addressed by the Respondents below, the Respondents deny each such 

allegation. 



PRELIMINARY STATEMENT 

A&C is a full-service accounting, assurance, tax and advisory firm. At times which are 

the subject of the OIP, together with its Canadian affiliate ( collective, the "Firm"), the Firm 

serviced over 2000 clients in small and middle markets worldwide. Among other services, the 

Firm provided and continues to provide audit and review services for public companies in the 

United States. It is registered with the Public Company Accountin~ Oversight Board 
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CannaVEST Corp. ("Canna VEST") (together,_ the -~'Reporting Companies")/{ ·· 

A&C, Wahl, and Chung performed the work for the Reporting Companies appropriately, 

in accordance with professional standards for each of these. As will be shown at the hearing, in 

each case, each of the Respondents properly exercised their professional judgment. Each of the 

Reporting Companies is discussed briefly below in this Preliminary Statement. 

Accelera. The principal issue is the appropriateness of consolidation of Behavioral 

Health Care Associates with Accelera. The Division's claims are based upon an unduly limited 

interpretation of when, in an accountant's professional judgment, consolidation may be 

appropriate. The judgment made by A&C and Wahl were within the appropriate parameters of 

professional judgment. 

Premier. The principal issue is whether A&C and Wahl met accounting standards in 

testing the value of a note which Premier acquired (the "Note") in 2013. They did. In response 

to the Division's concerns, A&C and Wahl provided the Division with declarations from the 
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Dean of a major university's accounting school which concluded after an extensive analysis, 

citing the work performed and applicable accounting rules, "[I]t was a reasonable professional 

judgment for [ A&C] to rely on the valuation information available to them, including the 

documentation [A&C] received and other communications from [the valuation specialist hired 

by Premier] as well as letters from management, as appropriate evidence supporting [ A&C] 's 

conclusion that 'the ending balance of the [Note Receivable] [was] reasonably recorded' as of 
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quarterly reviews. Review work involves substantial professional judgment, that is based upon ·. · · 

much more limited testing and analysis than that involved in an audit. A&C reasonably used its 

professional judgment in conducting its reviews. A&C acted appropriately and independently at 

all times. For example, A&C compelled Canna VEST to accept an impairment ofapproximately 

$27 million in goodwill. 

The SEC has filed a civil action against Canna VEST in federal district court in Nevada 

based upon the Phytosphere acquisition.• Canna VEST has moved to dismiss that action. In that 

motion, Canna VEST stated: 

[CannaVEST's] dealings with the SEC began immediately after the Restatements 
were filed (i.e., in April 2014) with an inquiry by the SEC' s Division ofCorporate 
Finance ("CorpFin"). In its initial correspondence, the SEC generally inquired 
about Canna VEST's acquisition of PhytoSphere' s assets. Over the next eight 
months, Canna VEST and CorpFin exchanged written correspondence and 

1 The Respondents reserve the right to file a motion to stay pending resolution of the 
CannaVEST litigation. See, e.g., Percoraro v. Sangheim -Kim, 2013 U.S. Dist, LEXIS 188413, 
at *8 (C.D. Cal. 2013) (Court granted motion to stay noting, "Because the issue is factually and 
legally difficult, and is already pending before the MDL court, staying the case is in the interest 
ofjudicial economy and avoids the potential for an inconsistent ruling.") 
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participated in several conference calls, along with PKF, as the [CannaVEST] 
explained and attempted to justify the Restatements as providing full disclosure 
and financial transparency. Notwithstanding the Restatements, CorpFin insisted 
that the Company restate its financials again, to revert back to its initial reporting 
of a $35 million valuation of the PhytoSphere assets. In so doing, CorpFin 
insisted that the correct reporting of the transaction required the Company to look 
only to the price on the face of the PhytoSphere purchase agreement, as 
Canna VEST had originally done . 

.·. ,.,.· ._ -·Respondents' professionaljud8ll:lent in the conduct ofreviews (not an audit) was_ so:faulty as.to;-;. ·--·...... 

justify this proceeding is untenable. As noted below, this is specifically egregious with respect· =. 

to Respondent Chung. 

Chung is named in the OIP solely based upon her work as the engagement quality review 

partner for the first quarter of 2013 for CannaVEST. Chung is the wife of Wahl. Her role at 

A&C in 2013 was solely performed on an as needed basis. She had no daily operational 

responsibilities for A&C other than some administrative work. Otherwise her full-time job was a 

mother of two. From 2009 through 2013, Chung was an engagement quality reviewer for very 

few engagements, one of which was CannaVEST. She acted appropriately for the review work 

she did on CannaVEST. Not only is she not liable for any misconduct, but her inclusion in this 

OIP is an unreasonable exercise ofprosecutorial discretion. 
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RESPONSES TO ALLEGATIONS 

1. With respect to paragraph 1, the Respondents admit that the alleged conduct relates to the 

audit and/or interim engagements for the Reporting Companies. The Respondents deny the 

remaining allegations ofsaid paragraph. 

2. With respect to paragraph 2, reference is made to A&C' s opinion for its terms. The 

Respondents deny the remaining allegations ofsaid paragraph . 

.3'~ · ::·. With respect to paragraph 3, the Respondents deny the allegations ofsaid p~agraph.:1f: ~:-?··•· 
_; -'/:~'->t :::· ../)/~:lt\/:,//_;_:., ·-:·.:: . . . .... ~- . . . - . --~tt·t-~ :__::.;:.. ;-~tJ~t-t~0. L:;~·),· _. :· -. 

·. . . <4~ :.:.. · With respect to paragraph 4~ reference is made to A&C's opinio11·0 for)ts)~~;_:Tht},;·,· .. 
• ~ '-., • "t ,.. • •• -'-:·r·, ·~ •,·' ,•; • · · , • • •.:• • ..., . • .:,:~·:::tf"f'.,',~ :~·,. •~ :.. . • , , •. •r 

' . ':• ~' 

/~e~~ndents deny the remaining allegations ofsaid paragraph. ·:. · -· ··· · ·2-:~f:f/!t/. ://!'· 
..• '1,\.',"' ., 

··s.: ·'..: :_: i With respect to paragraph 5, the Respondents d~y the allegations ofsaid ~~~graph>~ ·.'..:,~- -.-- .. ' ~ 

6. With respect to paragraph 6, the Respondents deny the allegations ofsaid_paragraph. ·= 

7. With respect to paragraph 7, the Respondents deny the allegations ofsaid paragraph. 

8. With respect to paragraph 8, the Respondents deny the allegations ofsaid paragraph. 

9. With respect to paragraph 9, the Respondents admit the allegations ofsaid paragraph. 

10. With respect to paragraph 10, the Respondents deny the allegation concerning Wahl's 

age. Respondents admit the remaining allegations ofsaid paragraph. 

11. With respect to paragraph 11, the Respondents admit the allegations ofsaid paragraph. 

12. With respect to paragraph 12, the Respondents admit the allegations of the first two 

sentences ofsaid paragraph. Respondents are informed and believe that the remaining allegations 

ofsaid paragraph are true, however Respondents do not have, and are unable to obtain, sufficient 

information to admit or deny these allegations. 
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13. With respect to paragraph 13, the Respondents do not have, and are unable to obtain, 

sufficient information to admit or deny the age and residence ofTommy Shek, CPA ("Shek"). 

Respondents admit the remaining allegations ofsaid paragraph. 

14. With respect to paragraph 14, as to the information identifying Accelera, reference is 

made to that company's filing with the SEC. Respondents are informed and believe that the 

remaining allegations of said paragraph are true, however Respondents do not have, and are 

unable to obtain, sufficient information to-admit or ·deny these allegations,/~ · '· · · · 
. - ~ :, . ·:/'.~~:tJ~f:i/'.--~~:~.Z/{:._:.. ,._ ~.. -··:.·_. >~;,:.·:~; \:, ,·.· ..:·:.~-ii;;~-.~::"~·/.-~/- ... ~ .. 

15. With respect to paragraph 15, the. R~onderits:.do not have;,:and: are unable'.)o ·obtafu,c.:::: 
• • • # :· .~ .... ~~ • ,.;_.·,..,••• A ... :· , :, ·., -.• ·: --~-- .... ••';,~ 'T.,:·;···,,. 

',: ':sufficient information to admit or deny these· allegati01is;:,·· . ~. . 

' . . . 

16. With respect to paragraph 16, ·as'to·:.the fufonnation· identifying Premier,. referenceJs:, · · 

made to that company's filing with the SEC. The Respondents are informed and believe. that the 

remaining allegations of said paragraph are true, however the Respondents do not have, and are 

unable to obtain, sufficient information to admit or deny these allegations. 

17. With respect to paragraph 17, the Respondents do not have, and are unable to obtain, 

sufficient information to admit or deny these allegations. 

18. With respect to paragraph 18, the Respondents do not have, and are unable to obtain, 

sufficient information to admit or deny these allegations. 

19. With respect to paragraph 19, the Respondents do not have, and are unable to obtain, 

sufficient information to admit or deny these allegations. 

20. With respect to paragraph 20, as to the information identifying Canna VEST, reference is 

made to that company's filing with the SEC. The Respondents are informed and believe that the 

remaining allegations of said paragraph are true, however the Respondents do not have, and are 

unable to obtain, sufficient information to admit or deny these allegations. 

6 

http:R~onderits:.do


21. With respect to paragraph 21, the Respondents do not have, and are unable to obtain, 

sufficient information to admit or deny these allegations. 

22. With respect to paragraph 22, the Respondents do not have, and are unable to obtain, 

sufficient information to admit or deny these allegations. 

23. With respect to paragraph 23, the Respondents deny the allegations ofsaid paragraph. 

24. With respect.to paragraph 24, reference is made to A&C's opinions for their terms. The 

Respon~ents ~t the ~aj~\Z ~~r1~St~~ffmd.~~~h. __. .·.· ..::f~:::}i:: '. . ..:_ 
25. -With :respect to paragr~ph·2s;·r~f~~c~ is made to A&C's opinions for their terms·:~·,i,--~::-.t \·Ji?i?-~~}~--:fi\J· 

'.:"'o '. > • • • •,J, ,, ,, ' ," l;· .~ •.t :.._-,'! •.-.i • ., • • • '. , • • • '-• I • .•.. • • ..,.,; ' • ,, _.•.,. • • • -

26. With respect to paragraph 26, ref~ence is m~de to A&C's opinions for their terms.· ·:· ~ · -· 

27. · With-respect to paragraph 27, reference-is made to A&C's Engagement Summary Memos:,-~:i:.:'~--~-' ·..': ·.'. ·. 

for their terms. 

28. With respect to paragraph 28, the Respondents deny the allegations ofsaid paragraph. 

29. With respect to paragraph 29, the Respondents deny the allegations ofsaid paragraph. 

30. · With respect to paragraph.30, as to the first and fourth sentences, Respondents admit the 

allegations. As to the second sentence, reference is made to the subject testimony for its terms 

and context. As to the third sentence, the term "audit season" is uncertain and accordingly the 

Respondents do not have, and are unable to obtain, sufficient information to admit or deny these 

allegations. 

31. With respect to paragraph 31, the Respondents deny these allegations. 

32. With respect to paragraph 32, Respondents do not have, and are unable to obtain, 

sufficient information to admit or deny these allegations. 

33. With respect to paragraph 33, as to the first and second sentences, the Respondents admit 

that for the year-end financials for 2013, Accelera consolidated its publicly-filed financial 
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statement for the financial conditions and results, but assert that the references to "pmported" 

and "treated BHCA's revenues, assets and liabilities as if they belonged to Accelera," are based 

upon a faulty premise and deny the allegations to the extent, that they allege that consolidation 

was improper. As to the third sentence, reference is made to the identified Form 10-K for its 

terms. 

34. With respect to paragraph 34, the Respondents deny the allegations ofsaid paragraph. 

· ·:. ·35~-?if,1.::Witfr:respect to paragraph 35, as· to the .. :first sentence, ·the Respond~ts. admit·-th~e, , 
....·-.}.-;".,/;~/itt-.. '\:)Lii\·;:·~:\··, ·· .. . . :·:·_. ·, · .,...:-:_._/~.. ·;<;.,:,:_.;,.· ... - ·.:; .. : -_/::~);::.-::·:~;~~;~;;-,~:.,_ ....::·:.._;..-::-..~-.;/:-·::· · 

·,; !;; al,legatio~~ :-.R~pondents deny the remairii,ng:allegations ofsaid paragraphX~-;: :· 1W?) .;: : · .· ;~\:~i :·.-.1 :}tf,f ::... ·: -; · 
,. -.'l.,.'•'1>•1_:;_,~.:·~~···~."-·'.·~.,.~ ,• ... ,, "'"',.: . ~'.'· •.1'' 

-~··36.::1::.:::; Witlf_resp~ct to paragraph 36~ the-Respondents admit the allegation. ofthis paragm,pir:;-_":. 

-~ except for: the reference to "explained below'' which-is uncertain.and accordingly;-as to .that term;-.:,· 'c, 

Respondents do not have, and are unable to obtain, sufficient information to admit or deny these 

allegations.. 

37. With respect to paragraph 37, the allegations are based upon a faulty premise and 

accordingly, the Respondents do not have, and are unable to obtain, sufficient information to 

admit or deny these allegations. 

38. With respect to paragraph 38, as to the first and third sentences, reference is made to 

Accelera's Form 10-K for 2013 for its terms with respect to the amounts reported as revenue. 

With respect to the remaining allegations of said paragraph, the allegations are based upon a 

faulty premise and accordingly, the Respondents do not have, and are unable to obtain, sufficient 

information to admit or deny these allegations. 

39. With respect to paragraph 39, Respondents do not have, and are unable to obtain, 

sufficient information to admit or deny these allegations. 
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40. With respect to paragraph 40, reference is made to the S~ock Purchase Agreement for its 

terms. As to any other allegations in said paragraph, Respondents do not have, and are unable to 

obtain, sufficient information to admit or deny these allegations. 

41. With respect to paragraph 41, as to subparagraphs a through c, reference is made to the 

identified documents for their terms. As to the remaining allegations in said paragraph, the 

Respondents do not have, and are unable to obtain, sufficient information to admit or deny these 

allegt~· . . -. . . ",.: '.. ·../W!It?rt(: >,
·. 42.- .;s·1·With ·respect to paragraph 42, ·_as to·.~e;firsftwo··sentences;- the Respondents admit that 

l:. ~ '._. ...,...;~~>~'-..;:-~·/.·~.~~ • .:.,, , 

A&C;~and Wah! knew about the Stock Purclia¥~ Agr~~ent. and that it was among the work 

· papersi:tas ·alleged.·;· · As to Deutchman's::.lqlowledgt:r- of the-··Stock Purchase· Agreement, 

Respondents do not have, and are unable to obtain, sufficient information to admit or deny these 

allegations. As to the remaining allegations in said paragraph, the Respondents deny these 

allegations. 

43. With respect to paragraph 43, the Respondents do not have, and are unable to obtain, 

sufficient information to admit or deny these allegations. 

44. With respect to paragraph 44, reference is made to any written amendments for their 

terms. As to any other allegations in said paragraph, the Respondents do not have, and are 

unable to obtain, sufficient information to admit or deny these allegations. 

45. With respect to paragraph 44, the Respondents admit the allegation of this paragraph 

except as to the allegations as to what Deutchman knew and as to that allegation, the 

Respondents do not have, and are unable to obtain, sufficient information to admit or deny that 

allegation. 

46. With respect to paragraph 46, the Respondents deny the allegations ofsaid paragraph. 
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47. With respect to paragraph 47, the Respondents do not have, and are unable to obtain, 

sufficient information to admit or deny these allegations. 

48. With respect to paragraph 48, the Respondents deny the allegations of said paragraph as 

to A&C and Wahl. As to Deutchman's knowledge alleged therein, Respondents do not have, 

and are unable to ol;>tain, sufficient information to admit or deny these allegations. 

49. With respect to paragraph 49, Respondents do not have, and are unable to obtain, 

sufficiet1;t infonnati9~ to admit or deny these allegations. , . · ~· ·· ·.~ · · f ~ i~;••... 
•·-·.· _;,._•c••;~:,, :•''' _,:. •• ,,.,,, 

·_ . · '.~,_-._ -:. ~-- _,'-_:.> r_-.·= . • ~- -~-- • . .: .:.~· • .. .·. :. . '-:>..::..:::;i. --:~~~)c:~~-;. ...--._ . 
so.: ·· ,-With respe_ct ~o paragraph 50, reference is made to the i4enti:fied document for its t~.~;... ~'.·;t~~::i-~ '.::,:~. 
As to ·anyother·allegations·in said paragraph,· the Respondents do not have,. and are unable· to(iJ,·~~ ..~-~~~~:::i'!i:;;,,i 

obtain, sufficient information to admit or deny these allegations. 

51. With respect to paragraph 51, the Respondents deny the allegations of said paragraph as· ,;-: .: · 

to A&C and Wahl. As to Deutchman's knowledge as alleged therein, Respondents do not have, 

and are unable to obtain, sufficient information to admit or deny these allegations. 

52. With respect to paragraph 52, the Respondents deny the allegations ofsaid paragraph. 

53. With respect to paragraph 53, the Respondents deny the allegations ofsaid paragraph. 

54. With respect to paragraph 54, the Respondents deny the allegations ofsaid paragraph. 

55. With respect to paragraph 55, the Respondents deny the allegations ofsaid paragraph. 

56. With respect to paragraph 56, the Respondents do not have, and are unable to obtain, 

sufficient information to admit or deny these allegations. 

57. With respect to paragraph 57, the Respondents admit the allegations ofsaid paragraph. 

58. With respect to paragraph 58, the Respondents admit the allegation of this paragraph 

except as to the allegations as to what Deutchman knew and as to that allegation, the 
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Respondents do not have, and are unable to obtain, sufficient information to admit or deny that 

allegation. 

59. With respect to paragraph 59, the Responde:Qts do not have, and are unable to obtain, 

sufficient information to admit or deny these allegations. 

60. With respect to paragraph 60, the Respondents do not have, and are unable to obtain,. 

sufficient information to admit or deny these allegations. 

· · 61.- -_: ·:WJth respect to· paragraph 61, as to the first sentence, the· Respondents-· deny these 
.. • ·. ... 

·_~· .:... ' \. ~: . ~· · allegatio~\,~iaph- as to A&C and Wahl. As to Deutchm~'s Im~wi~i~-;~ ~~g~fth~~~~-.-::-. ,,:~:-.!~'-'-~:-~-~: 
·..: . . ' ... ;~ ' . .. ' ' 

- · <· .· Respondents:do~not have,'and are unable to obtain, sufficient-informationto:admit'or deny.these .. · .· ::·.: :···. · 

. · t,> ·. - · allegations. -·With respect to the second sentence, reference is· made to Form 8-K.Items-2~01 and 

9.01.and Exchange Act Rule 13a-11 for their terms ...These requirements and rules are subject to 

professional interpretation. As to the remaining allegations of said paragraph, the Respondents 

do not have, and are unable to obtain, sufficient information to admit or deny these allegations. 

62. With respect to paragraph 62, as to the last sentence, the allegations are based upon a 

faulty premise and accordingly, the Respondents do not have, and are unable to obtain, sufficient 

information to admit or deny these allegations. As to the remaining allegations of said 

paragraph, the Respondents do not have, and are unable to obtain, sufficient information to admit 

or deny these allegations. 

63. With respect to paragraph 63, the Respondents do not have, and are unable to obtain, 

sufficient information to admit or deny these allegations. 

64. With respect to paragraph 64, as to the last sentence, Respondents deny these allegations. 

As to the remaining allegations of this paragraph, Respondents do not have, and are unable to 

obtain, sufficient information to admit or deny these allegations. 
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65. With respect to paragraph 65, as to the first sentence, Respondents deny these 

allegations. As to the remaining allegations of this paragraph, Respondents do not have, and are 

unable to obtain, sufficient information to admit or deny these allegations. 

66. With respect to paragraph 66, as to the allegations that A&C signed audit reports and 

engaged in reviews for Accelera, Respondents admit these allegations. As to the allegation in 

the first sentence of"the red flags described above," the Respondents deny the allegation of"red 

flags." As to any other allegations in said P.~gra~~ ~~~~d~ts· ~o not have, and are unable to 
. ~·>-;·..;. -.-·. --:\·~·:"7"--- --, ... ·•. :.,;~--:'-.,:;:..·t ~::· ·:: .. 

' ·.. ~ .obtain, sufficient information to admit or deny 'the~e:·allegatlons>r:' --~ .., . . . . !- •. 

-. . . \ 

67. With respect to paragraph 67, the Respondents deny,_the allegations ofsaid paragraph~ 

68. With respect to paragraph 68, Respondents admit that an Acquisition Memo was· drafted 

by a staff accountant. As to the allegation that the staff accountant was "newly hired" and had 

"no audit experience," these are conclusory and uncertain terms and accordingly the 

Respondents do not have, and are unable to obtain, sufficient information to admit or deny these 

allegations. As to the other allegations in said paragraph, Respondents deny these allegations. 

69. With respect to paragraph 69, reference is made to the Acquisition Memo for its terms. 

70. With respect to paragraph 70, reference is made to the Acquisition Memo for its terms. 

71. With respect to paragraph 71, reference is made to the Acquisition Memo for its terms. 

72. With respect to paragraph 72, reference is made to the Acquisition Memo for its terms. 

73. With respect to paragraph 73, reference is made to the Acquisition Memo for its terms. 

74. With respect to paragraph 74, as to the allegation that A&C prepared "no other 

documentation," the phrase is conclusory and uncertain and accordingly the Respondents do not 

have, and are unable to obtain, sufficient information to admit or deny these allegations. As to 

the other allegations in said paragraph, Respondents deny these allegations. 
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75. With respect to paragraph 75, the Respondents deny the allegations ofsaid paragraph. 

76. With respect to paragraph 76, as to the first sentence, the Respondents deny the 

allegations of said paragraph. As to the remaining allegations of said paragraph, the 

Respondents do not have, and are unable to obtain, sufficient information to admit or deny these 

allegations. 

77. With respect to paragraph 77, as to the first two sentences, Respondents do not have, and 

are unable to obtain;· sufficienflnformation to admit or deny these allegations. As to the last ~o ,.·::--::'-:-~Y:t-:~:_,_ :,f1; 
•'./-.c--.. .. • ••·'- :,.-.;-..<~i:\.~i,(.,. ~ - · · · · ·· · · · '· ' · .. ~\/.: _:.:\-t~---,, :'t-~' 

sentences- :of -sai_d)paragraph/ the Respondents:,state that·-the:allegations -are- an,-·incomplete/~~--,?)ff\\f;\~t= 
. ' . : ·. . . .: . ' : ; ··. ~- ; . . .:.._ ·•. . -~ .' : 

statem~t ofthe-.testimony:.ofMichael Deutchman ("Deutchman") and:reference is made··to-~atfx:tf~~~-;--;;;;,::'.~: 

· testimony-for its terms. -;·i · ;_-:f·'!· :,- -.,_<_,-

78. With respect to paragraph 78, the Respondents deny the allegations ofsaid paragraph. - ·· 

79. With respect to paragraph 79, the allegations are based upon faulty premises and are 

therefore confusing, and accordingly the Respondents do not have, and are unable to obtain, 

sufficient information to admit or deny these allegations. To the extent these allegations are 

understood by the Respondents, the Respondents deny the allegations ofsaid paragraph. 

80. With respect to paragraph 80, the Respondents deny the allegations ofsaid paragraph. 

81. With respect to paragraph 81, reference is made to PCAOB Standards AU §§ 210 and 

230 for their terms. These standards are subject to professional interpretation. 

82. With respect to paragraph 82, reference is made to PCAOB Standard AS No. 10 

(including subsect No. 10.6) and QC § 20 for their terms. These standards are subject to 

professional interpretation. 

83. With respect to paragraph 83, reference is made to PCAOB Standard AS No. 7 for its 

terms. This standard is subject to professional interpretation. 
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84. With respect to paragraph 84, as to the allegation that the staff accountant was "newly 

hired" and had "no audit experience," these are conclusory and uncertain terms and accordingly 

the Respondents do not have, and are unable to obtain, sufficient information to admit or deny 

these allegations. As to the remaining allegations in the first sentence, Respondents do not have, 

and are unable to obtain, sufficient information to admit or deny these allegations. As to the 

allegation in the second sentence, Respondents are informed and believe that it is correct, but at 

- , this· time,Respondents· do· not have, and are unable to obtain;-:sufficient infonnation to admit or·- . 
·_ .. . ' " ~· ·-;~---~.-.~.-~--.:.,' .\ . ,., 

. .. .· den}(~s-'all~gatiori~~-: -~ .. : :_,.: · -;<_ ;~:, .).~~;_t;)i<;;~(~),i~·. ,.:~~;c· ·:- -;. : ·, 

85/\( With .respect to·:paragraph 85, as to the first- sentence;~~.the ::allegation· that the staff .. 

. accountant- was "newly hired" and had "no audit experience;" these are conclusory"and uncertain. 

terms and accordingly the Respondents do not have, and -are unable -to obtain, sufficient 

information to admit or deny the allegations of the first sentence. With respect to the remaining 

allegations in said paragraph, the allegation of"purported supervision" is apparently based upon 

a faulty premise and is accordingly confusing. To the extent that allegation is understood by the 

Respondents, the Respondents deny the allegation. The Respondents deny the remaining 

allegations ofsaid paragraph. 

86. With respect to paragraph 86, as to the first sentence, the Respondents admit the 

allegations. With respect to the second sentence of this paragraph, the Respondents do not have, 

and are unable to obtain, sufficient information to admit or deny the allegations 

87. With respect to paragraph 87, the Respondents do not have, and are unable to obtain, 

sufficient information to admit or deny the allegations concerning Deutchman's 

communications. As to the remaining allegations of said paragraph, the Respondents deny the 

allegations. 
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88. With respect to paragraph 88, the Respondents deny the allegations ofsaid paragraph. 

89. With respect to paragraph 89, the Respondents deny the allegations ofsaid paragraph. 

90. With respect to paragraph 90, reference is made to PCAOB Standards AS No. 15 and AU 

§ 722 and the subparts cited therein, reference is made to these standards ( and the subparts 

referenced) for their terms. These standards are subject to professional interpretation. 

91. With respect to paragraph 91, reference is made to PCAOB Standards AU § 333 

(including· subsections 333.02:_and 333.04} and AS.= No~-0 3.8, and, reference is made to these 
• I • • •~ • • • ' 

standards for their terms. These standards are subject to•professional interpretation. 

92. · ·With respect to·. paragraph · 92~, reference , is ·made to .· AS No.7 and. the subparts cited 

therein, reference is made to AS· No. 7 (and the subparts referenced),for their terms. AS No. 7 is 

subject to professional interpretation .. As to any other allegations in said paragraph, Respondents 

do not have, and are unable to obtain, sufficient information to admit or deny these allegations. 

93. With respect to paragraph 93, reference is made to the opinions for their terms. As to the 

remainder of the first sentence concerning the issuance of audit reports, the references to "issued 

audit reports" and "issuance ofaudit reports" are conclusory and uncertain terms and accordingly 

the Respondents do not have, and are unable to obtain, sufficient information to admit or deny 

these allegations. Respondents specifically deny that Wahl approved the 2015 audit. As to the 

other allegations in said paragraph, Respondents deny these allegations. 

94. With respect to paragraph 94, as to the first two sentences, the terms "A&C knew that 

Accelera had material weaknesses" and that "financial reporting was ineffective" is conclusory 

and uncertain and accordingly the Respondents do not have, and are unable to obtain, sufficient 

information to admit or deny the allegations. As to the third sentence, the Respondents admit 
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that the quoted language is contained in the audit planning memoranda by reference is made to 

the entire memoranda for context. 

95. With respect to paragraph 95, the Respondents deny the allegations ofsaid paragraph. 

96. With respect to paragraph 96, the allegations appear to be based upon a faulty premise 

and accordingly are uncertain. To the extent these allegations are understood by the 

Respondents, the Respondents deny the allegations. 

97. With respect Jo-paragraph 97, the Respondents do not have, and are Utiable to obtain, .. ,· -:-i,.·.·· :· -: ::.· 
.. 

. . . .~ .suffici~t info~~ti~rit~ -~diriit ~r deny th~e allegations.
. _:· .• .. 

98. With respect ~o paragraph- 98, the Respondents· deny the allegations ofsaid paragraph~< · · 

99. With respect-to paragraph 99, reference is made to PCAOB Standards AS 3.6, AS 3.12 

and AU 722.52 reference is made to these standards ( and the subparts referenced) for their 

terms. These standards are subject to professional interpretation. 

100. With respect to paragraph 100, the Respondents deny the allegations ofsaid .paragraph. 

101. With respect to paragraph 101, the Respondents do not have, and are unable to obtain, 

sufficient information to admit or deny these allegations. 

102. With respect to paragraph 102, the Respondents deny the allegations ofsaid paragraph. 

103. With respect to paragraph 103, reference is made to PCAOB Standard AU § 230 

(including subsections 230.07, 230.08 and 230.09) and AU § 722.01 for their terms. These 

standards are subject to professional interpretation. 

104. With respect to paragraph 104, the Respondents deny the allegations ofsaid paragraph. 

105. With respect to paragraph 105, reference is made to PCAOB Standard QC § 20 

(including subsections 20.01, 20.04, 20.17 and 20.18) for their terms. These standards are 

subject to professional interpretation. 
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106. With respect to paragraph 106, the Respondents deny the allegations ofsaid paragraph. 

107. With respect to paragraph 107, the allegations in the first and third sentences are based 

upon a faulty premise and accordingly, the Respondents do not have, and are unable to obtain, 

sufficient information to admit or deny these allegations. As to the second sentence, the 

Respondents deny these allegations. 

108. With respect to paragraph 108, the Respondents deny the allegations ofsaid paragraph. 

109. · · With respect to paragraph 109, the Respondents deny the allegations' ofsaid paragraph. 
- :._ • • ~- - i ••• 

110. · With respect to paragraph 110, the.Respondents deny the allei~tibni~°r~aid p~gi-aph. 

111. -~ . With respect to paragraph 11, the Respondents anticipated thafAccelera' s Forms· 10-K 

· · . would in A&C opinions for periods for which.A&C issued-.opinions~\>Reference is:.made to-those 

opinions for their terms. As to the remaining allegations ofsaid paragraph, the Respondents deny 

these allegations. 

112. With respect to paragraph 112, the Respondents deny these allegations. 

113. With respect to paragraph 113, the Respondents do not have, and are unable to obtain, 

sufficient information to admit or deny these allegations. 

114. With respect to paragraph 114, the Respondents do not have, and are unable to obtain, 

sufficient information to admit or deny these allegations. 

115. With respect to paragraph 115, the Respondents do not have, and are unable to obtain, 

sufficient information to admit or deny these allegations. 

116. With respect to paragraph 116, the Respondents do not have, and are unable to obtain, 

sufficient information to admit or deny these allegations. 
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117. With respect to paragraph 117, reference is made to the Note for its terms. With respect 

to the remaining allegations of this paragraph, the Respondents do not have, and are unable to 

obtain, sufficient information to admit or deny these allegations. 

118. With respect to paragraph 118, reference is made to ASC 310-10-30-5 for its 

tenns. These standards are subject to professional interpretation. 

119. With respect to paragraph 119, reference is made to ASC 820-10-30 for its terms. These 

standards are subject to professional. interpretation. ·Reference. is· also· made to. the·. identified 

documents for their ter11:1s. The Respondents deny .the:allegation of the last sentence of footnote ·,.
·(·:··· 

10. As to- the remaining allegations of this paragraph; the Respondents do not have, and are 

unable to obtain, sufficient information-to admit or deny these' allegations~ · · -··· _. · ,· · · · 

120. With respect to paragraph 120, as to the ~st sentence offootnote 11, reference is made to 

ASC 850-10-20 for its tenns. Those standards are subject to professional interpretation. As the 

second sentence of footnote 11, the Respondents do not have, and are unable to obtain, sufficient 

information to admit or deny these allegations. As to the reference to "converted a quarterly loss 

to net income," this phrase is conclusory and uncertain and accordingly the Respondents do not 

have, and are unable to obtain, sufficient information to admit or deny these allegations. As to 

the other allegations in said paragraph, Respondents deny that allegation. As to the remaining 

allegations of this paragraph, the Respondents admit these allegations. 

121. With respect to paragraph 121, reference is made to ASC 310-35 for its terms. These 

standards are subject to professional interpretation. As to the second sentence, omitting the word 

"instead," the Respondents admit these allegations. 

122. With respect to paragraph 122, the Respondents do not have, and are unable to obtain, 

sufficient information to admit or deny these allegations. 
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123. With respect to paragraph 123, the Respondents do not have, and are unable to obtain, 

sufficient information to admit or deny these allegations. 

124. With respect to paragraph 124, the Respondents admit the allegations ofsaid paragraph. 

125. With respect to paragraph 125, the Respondents admit the allegations of said 

paragraph. 

126. With respect to paragraph 126, the allegation as based upon a faulty premise, to the 

extent the word:.-''purported~Jr-is ,used. The· Respondents. admit the remaining, allegation·- of,said:~·- ; · 
' ' - •• .t-.. ', 

• < ·,. ; '. ·: ( '_. ~ '. 

127.. With respect to paragraph-127, as to the ~t and fourth sentences, the Respondents deny:~·-· 

these allegations.- xAs- to:.the second· and third sentences, reference is made to. ASC 805 :for its-;'> 

terms. These. standards are subject to professional interpretation. As to footnote 12,- the 
, 

Respondents do not have, and are unable to obtain, sufficient information to admit or deny these 

allegations. 

128. With respect to paragraph 128, the Respondents do not have, and are unable to obtain, 

sufficient information to admit or deny these allegations. 

129. With respect to paragraph 129, reference is made to PCAOB Standard AU§ 110 and AU 

§ 316.01 for their terms. These standards are subject to professional interpretation. 

130. With respect to paragraph 130, the Respondents admit these allegations. 

131. With respect to paragraph 131, the allegations appear to be based upon the 2013 Planning 

Memo. Reference is made to that document for its terms. 

132. With respect to paragraph 132, the allegations appear to be based upon one or more 

specific work:papers. Without a more specific identification of the subject workpapers, the 
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Respondents do not have, and are unable to obtain, sufficient information to admit or deny these 

allegations. 

133. With respect to paragraph 133, the Respondents deny these allegations. 

134. With respect to paragraph 134, the Respondents deny these allegations. 

135. With respect to paragraph 135, the Respondents deny these allegations. 

136. With respect to paragraph 136, the Respondents deny these allegations. 

:•:1 • -::\-;, -::.. 137. . · With respect to paragraph 137, the Respondents deny these allegations •. · ;':, · 

· · ·.. 138. With respect to paragraph· 138, the Respondents deny these allegations>·::·· 

.,-.··.·· 139~-.. With respect to paragraph 139, the Respondents deny these allegations.>i_ 

.. ;.. - :;·,·- -140.- With respect to paragraph 140, the Respondents deny these allegations~ : ;. ·· 

141. With respect to paragraph 141, the Respondents deny these allegations .. ·. 

142. With respect to paragraph 142, the Respondents deny these allegations. 

143. With respect to paragraph 143, the Respondents deny these allegations. 

144. With respect to paragraph 144, the Respondents deny these allegations. 

145. With respect to paragraph 145, the Respondents deny these allegations. 

146. With respect to paragraph 146, the Respondents deny these allegations. 

147. With respect to paragraph 14 7, as to the first sentence, the Respondents admit these 

allegations. As to the second sentence, reference is made to PCAOB Standards AU§ 230.07, 

AU § 230.09 and AU § 316 for their terms. These standards are subject to professional 

interpretation. As to the remaining allegations of this paragraph, the Respondents deny these 

allegations. 

148. With respect to paragraph 148, reference is made to Standard AU 316.66 for its 

tenns. This standard is subject to professional interpretation. With respect to the remaining 
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allegations of said paragraph, as to the dates of the referenced transactions and what 

"management" had recorded as stated in the last sentence, reference is made to the relevant 

financial statements as they were filed at the time A&C performed its work for their terms. As to 

whether these specific events occurred, the Respondents do not have, and are unable to. obtain, 

sufficient information to admit or deny these allegations. As to the remaining allegations, 

including without limitation any implication that A&C or Wahl acted improperly, the 

. Respondents deny these·,allegations. 1 .'.:\~- :_. : :,_,.· • , ~-

149. With respect to paragraph149}--tb~-:Respondents do·not have, and are unable to obtain, 

sufficient information to admit or denythese allegations. . 

· 150.: With respect -to ·paragraph~ 150, reference.-is made to Standard AU 316.66 for its 

terms. This standard is subject to professional interpretation. As to the remaining allegations, 

including without limitation any implication that Wahl acted improperly, the Respondents deny 

these allegations. 

151. With respect to paragraph 151, the Respondents deny these allegations. 

152. With respect to paragraph 152, reference is made to Standard AU 316.66 for its 

terms. This standard is subject to professional interpretation. With respect to the remaining 

allegations of said paragraph, as to the allegations concerning the valuation, the Respondents 

deny these allegations. As to the remaining allegations, the· Respondents do not have, and are 

unable to obtain, sufficient information to admit or deny these allegations. 

153. With respect to paragraph 153, the Respondents deny these allegations. 

154. With respect to paragraph 154, the Respondents deny these allegations. 
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155. With respect to paragraph 155, reference is made to PCAOB Standard QC § 20 

(including subsections 20.01, 2004, 20.17, and 20.18) and AS No. 7 for their terms. These 

standards are subject to professional interpretation. 

156. With respect to paragraph 156, the Respondents deny these allegations. 

157. With respect to paragraph 157, the Respondents deny these allegations. 

158. With respect to paragraph 158, the Respondents deny these allegations. 

159. With respect to paragraph 159, as to the information identifying Premier, reference is 

made to that company's filing with the SEC. The Respondents are informed and believe that 

the remaining allegations of said paragraph are true, however the Respondents do not have, and 

are unable to obtain, sufficient information to admit or deny these allegations. 

160. With respect to paragraph 160, as to the · first sentence, the Respondents admit this 

allegation. As to the second sentence, reference is made to the identified complaint for its terms. 

161. With respect to paragraph 161, reference is made to the identified complaint for its terms. 

162. With respect to paragraph 162, reference is made to the identified complaint for its terms. 

163. With respect to paragraph 163, reference is made to the identified complaint for its terms. 

164. With respect to paragraph 164, Respondents do not have, and are unable to obtain, 

sufficient information to admit or deny these allegations. 

165. With respect to paragraph 165, the Respondents admit these allegations. 

166. With respect to paragraph 166, the Respondents admit these allegations. 

167. With respect to paragraph 167, the Respondents admit these allegations. 

168. With respect to paragraph 168, the Respondents admit these allegations. 
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169. With respect to paragraph 169, reference is made to PCAOB Standard AU § 722 

(including subparts 722.07 and 722.15) for their terms. These standards are subject to 

professional interpretation. 

170. With respect to paragraph 170, the Respondents deny these allegations. 

171. With respect to paragraph 171, the Respondents deny these allegations. 

172. With respect to paragraph 172, as to the second sentence, the Respondents are informed 

and believe that these allegations are correct, however the Respondents do not have, and are 

unable to obtain, sufficient information to admit or deny these allegations. As to the remaining 

allegations ofsaid paragraph, the Respondents deny these allegations. 

173. With respect to paragraph 173, as to footnote 16, the Respondents do not have, and are 

unable to obtain, sufficient information to admit or deny these allegations. As to the remaining 

allegations ofsaid paragraph, the Respondents deny these allegations. 

174. With respect to paragraph 174, the Respondents deny these allegations. 

175. With respect to paragraph 175, as to the second sentence, reference is made to AU 722.16 

for its tenns. This standard is subject to professional interpretation. As to the third sentence, this 

allegation is based upon a faulty premise and accordingly, the Respondents do not have, and are 

unable to obtain, sufficient information to admit or deny these allegations. As to the fourth and 

fifth sentences, the Respondents do not have, and are unable to obtain, sufficient information to 

admit or deny these allegations. As to the remaining allegations of said paragraph, the 

Respondents deny these allegations. 

176. With respect to paragraph 176, the Respondents deny these allegations. 

177. With respect to paragraph 177, as to reference is made to AU § 722 (and to subsection 

722.26) for their tenns. These standards are subject to professional interpretation. 
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178. With respect to paragraph 178, the Respondents deny these allegations. 

179. With respect to paragraph 179, the allegations are based upon a faulty premise and 

accordingly, the Respondents do not have, and are unable to obtain, sufficient information to 

admit or deny these allegations. 

180. With respect to paragraph 180, as to the identified emails, reference is made to the emails 

for their terms. As to the second sentence, the Respondents admit that Canna VEST recorded an 

impairment of approximately $27million to goodwill on its Q3 balance sheet as the urging of 

A&C. As to the final sentence ofsaid paragraph, the Respondents deny the allegation. 

181. With respect to paragraph 181, the Respondents deny these allegations. 

182. With respect to paragraph 182, reference is made to PCAOB Standard AU § 722 

(including subsection 722.10-722.13) for their terms. These standards are subject to professional 

interpretation. 

183. With respect to paragraph 183, the Respondents deny these allegations. 

184. With respect to paragraph 184, the Respondents do not have, and are unable to obtain, 

sufficient information to admit or deny these allegations. 

185. With respect to paragraph 185, the Respondents deny these allegations. 

186. With respect to paragraph 186, as to the first sentence, the Respondents deny these 

allegations. As to the second and third sentences, reference is made to the identified documents 

for their terms and as to the allegation concerning what Shek reviewed, the Respondents do not 

have, and are unable to obtain, sufficient information to admit or deny these allegations. 

187. With respect to paragraph 187, reference is made to PCAOB Standard AS No. 3 

(including subsection 3.2) for their terms. These standards are subject to professional 

interpretation. 
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188. With respect to paragraph 188, reference is made to PCAOB Standard AU 722 (including 

subsections 722.51-722.52) for their terms. These standards are subject to professional 

interpretation. 

189. With respect to paragraph 189, the Respondents deny these allegations. 

190. With respect to paragraph 190, reference is made to PCAOB Standards AU § 722 

(including subsection 722.01) and AU § 150.02 and PCAOB Standard AU § 230 (including 

subsection 230.07) for their terms. These standards are subject to professional inteipretation. 

191. With respect to paragraph 191, the Respondents deny these allegations. 

192. With respect to paragraph 192, reference is made to PCAOB Standard QC § 20 

(including subsections 20.01. 20.04, 20.17 and 20.18) and PCAOB Standard AS No. 7 for their 

terms. These standards are subject to professional interpretation. 

193. With respect to paragraph 206, the Respondents deny these allegations. 

194. With respect to paragraph 194, the allegations in the first sentence, the Respondents deny 

these allegations. As to the remaining allegations of said paragraph, the allegations are based 

upon a faulty premise and accordingly, the Respondents do not have, and are unable to obtain, 

sufficient information to admit or deny these allegations. 

195. With respect to paragraph 195, as to the allegation that A&C's policies and procedures 

manual was deficient, the Respondents deny these allegations. As to the remaining allegations of 

said paragraph, the allegations are based upon a faulty premise and accordingly, the Respondents 

do not have, and are unable to obtain, sufficient information to admit or deny these allegations. 

196. With respect to paragraph 196, reference is made to PCAOB Standard AS No. 7 

(including subsection 7.14) for their terms. These standards are subject to professional 

interpretation. 
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197. With respect to paragraph 197, reference is made to AS No. 7 .15 and AS No. 7 .16 for 

their terms. These standards are subject to professional interpretation. As to the specific 

allegation in the first sentence concerning what an EQR evaluates, this call for a legal conclusion 

and accordingly, no specific answer is required at this time. Moreover, without a further context, 

the allegation is uncertain and accordingly, the Respondents do not have, and are unable to 

obtain, sufficient information to admit or deny this allegation. 

198. With respect to paragraph 198, reference is made to AS No. 7 .17 for its terms. This 

standard is subject to professional interpretation. As to the remaining allegations in said 

paragraph, these call for legal conclusions and accordingly, no specific answer is required at this 

time. Moreover, without a further context, these allegations are uncertain and accordingly, the 

Respondents do not have, and are unable to obtain, sufficient information to admit or deny this 

allegation. 

199. With respect to paragraph 199, as to the first sentence, the Respondents admit this 

allegation. As to the remaining allegations in said paragraph, the Respondents deny these 

allegations. 

200. With respect to paragraph 200, as to the second sentence, Respondents admit these 

allegations. As to the first sentence, third sentence and sixth sentence, Respondents deny these 

allegations. As to the fourth sentence, this allegation is based upon a faulty premise and 

accordingly, the Respondents do not have, and are unable to obtain, sufficient information to 

admit or deny these allegations. As to the fifth sentence, the allegation is based upon an 

incomplete hypothetical and accordingly, the Respondents do not have, and are unable to obtain, 

sufficient information to admit or deny this. 

201. With respect to paragraph 201, the Respondents deny these allegations. 
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202. With respect to paragraph 202, the Respondents deny these allegations. 

203. With respect to paragraph 203, reference is made to AS No. 7 (including subsection 7.17) 

and AU § 230.07 for their terms. These standards are subject to professional interpretation. 

204. With respect to paragraph 204, the Respondents deny these allegations. 

205. With respect to paragraph 205, the Respondents deny these allegations. 

206. With respect to paragraph 206, the Respondents deny these allegations. 

207. With respect to paragraph 207, the Respondents deny these allegations. 

208. With respect to paragraph 208, the Respondents deny these allegations. 

209. With respect to paragraph 209, the Respondents deny these allegations. 

210. With respect to paragraph 210, the Respondents deny these allegations. 

21 1. With respect to paragraph 21 1, the Respondents deny these allegations. 

212. With respect to paragraph 212, the Respondents deny these allegations. 

213. With respect to paragraph 213, the Respondents deny these allegations. 

214. With respect to paragraph 214, the Respondents deny these allegations. 

215. With respect to paragraph 215, the Respondents deny these allegations. 

216. With respect to paragraph 216, the Respondents deny these allegations. 

217. With respect to paragraph 217, the Respondents deny these allegations. 

218. With respect to paragraph 218, the Respondents deny these allegations. 

AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSES 

The Respondents, and each of them, assert the following separate, affirmative defenses to 

the OIP. In so doing, the Respondents do not assume the burden or production or proof with 

respect to any fact of proposition necessary to the affirmative defense where the burden of 

production and/or proof is properly imposed on the SEC. 
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I. The OIP is improperly set for determination by an SEC Administrative Law Judge 

("AU"). Determination of this proceeding by an ALJ is a violation of the Appointments Clause 

in Article II, Section 2 of the United States Constitution (the "Constitution") which provides that 

"the Congress may by law vest the appointment of such inferior officers, as they think proper, in 

the president alone, in the courts of law or in the heads of departments" and of the Due Process 

Clauses of the Fifth and Fourteenth Amendments. 

2. The OIP and each cause of action/claim of violation of SEC statutes, rules and 

regulations fails to state a claim upon which the requested relief may be granted against the 

Respondents or any ofthem. 

3. At all times relevant, with respect to the audits and reviews which are the subject of the 

OIP, the Respondents, and each of them exercised appropriate professional judgment in 

conformity with applicable professional standards. The Respondents did not engage in 

unprofessional conduct with respect to these audits and reviews. 

4. The Division's claims against the Respondents, and each of them, fail to the extent that 

the Respondents reasonably relied upon others including professional valuation experts and/or 

the issuers that are referenced in the OIP and/or their officers, directors and/or agents. 

5. The OIP and each cause of action/claim of violation of SEC statutes, rules and 

regulations fails to state a claim upon which the requested relief may be granted against the 

Respondents or any of them. 

6. Proceedings pursuant to the OIP should be stayed pending resolution and related 

litigation which the SEC has filed and referenced in the OIP. 
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7. The appropriate venue for these proceedings is California, where all of the Respondents 

are located and the principal audit and review work at issue were conducted. These proceedings, 

including all motions and hearings should proceed in California. 

8. The Division's claims are barred in whole or part based upon the doctrine ofestoppel. 

9. The Respondents, and each of them, lacked the sci enter requisite for the claims asserted 

against them for violations ofExchange Act Section 1 0(b) and Rule 1 0b-5 thereunder. 

10. Respondents A&C and Wahl, and each of them, lacked the willfulness requisite for the 

claims for aiding and abetting asserted against them for violations ofExchange Act Section 13(a) 

and Rules 13a-1 and 13a-13 thereunder. 

11. Respondents A&C and Wahl, and each of them, lacked the willfulness requisite for the 

claims for aiding and abetting asserted against them for violations ofRule 2-02(b) ofRegulation 

S-X. 

12. Respondents A&C and Wahl, and each of them, lacked the willfulness requisite for the 

claims for aiding and abetting asserted against them for direct and/or aiding and abetting 

violations of Section 4C(a)(3) of the Exchange Act and Rule 102(e)(l)(iii) of the SEC's Rules of 

Practice. 

13. The OIP and each cause of action/claim of violation of SEC statutes, rules and 

regulations fails by reason of the doctrine of ]aches. 

14. The OIP and each cause of action/claim of violation of SEC statutes, rules and 

regulations fails by reason of failure of the Division to comply with Section 929U of the Dodd

Frank Act, 15 U.S.C. § 78d-5. 

15. Respondents' conduct does not justify the relief requested by the Division. 
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16. Disgorgement is inappropriate and impermissible. The SEC lacks authority to order 

disgorgement. 

17. Determination of this proceeding by an AU violates the Respondents' right to a jury trial 

pursuant to the Seventh Amendment of the Constitution. 

18. Respondents reserve the right to assert additional affirmative defenses based upon 

discovery and/or further analysis. 

CONCLUSION/PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

Wherefore, the Division's claims and requests for relief against the Respondents, an each 

of them, should be denied. 

Dated: January 5, 2018 Respectfully submitted, 

GARTENBERG GELFAND HAYTON LLP 

15260 Ventura Blvd., Sutie 1920 
Sherman Oaks, CA 91403 
Tel: 213.542.2100 
Email: egartenberg@gghslaw.com 

Attorneys for Respondents 
Anton & Chia, LLP, Gregory A. Wahl, 
and Georgia Chung, CPA 
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